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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ACCORD ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of Accord Estates Private Limited
(“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (together referred to as
‘Ind AS Financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and
its profit including other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the management discussion & analysis and director’s report included in the annual report
but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The above
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
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In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and make other
appropriate reporting as prescribed.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there
under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting,
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain




also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e TFvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Ind AS
Financial Statements.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows are dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.




()

(f)

(8)

(h)

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31s March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“ Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
not a public company. Accordingly, the provision of section 197(16) is not applicable to the
company.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) the Company does not have any pending litigations and therefore no impact or
disclosure in relation to the same has been made in the Ind AS financial statement,
except for the those as mentioned under contingent liabilities and commitments in the
Ind AS financial statement.

(ii) the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for the material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts in the Ind
AS financial statement.

(iii)  there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv)  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested by the company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
company form any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”)
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding parties (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) contain any material misstatement.

(v)




2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For BHUWANIA & AGRAWAL ASSOCIATES
(Chartered Accountants)
(Firm Registration no. 101483W)

FLBbieuane

Shubham Bhuwania
(Partner)

Membership No.: 171789
UDIN : 22171789A]XUEV4762
Date :30/05/2022

Place : Mumbai




ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Accord Estates Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31% March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statementis of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies p
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurate,
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide rea .'




assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31st March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For BHUWANIA & AGRAWAL ASSOCIATES
(Chartered Accountants)
(Firm Registration no. 101483W)

SBhutuen i

Shubham Bhuwania
(Partner)

Membership No.: 171789
UDIN : 22171789AJXUEV4762
Date :30/05/2022

Place : Mumbai




ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report of even date)

Report on the statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020:

(D)

(iii)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant & equipment.
(a) (B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and
equipment are verified in a phased manner on yearly basis. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant
Pand equipment during the year.

(€) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, physical verification of
inventory and reporting in relation to same may not be applicable to the Company as the
Company is into Real Estate Business of Construction/ Development of properties.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working,
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks and financial institution
on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause

3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has made investments, provided
guarantee or security, granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, or
any other parties during the year.

(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in nature of loan or stood guarantee, or
provided security to any other entity, as under -

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has provided loans or advances in nature of loan, oL sk
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity as below:




(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Guarantees | Security Loans Advances in
i o N nature of loan
| Aggregate amount during the year II B
‘ - Subsidiaries : - . "

- Others ’ - | 11490 2.35

‘ Balance outstanding as at balance
. sheet date
. - Subsidiaries 20,000.00 - - -
- Others - - 35.40 220

. = EES——
*Advances in nature of loan to others includes loans/advances given to employees.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investment made, guarantees provided,
security given during the year and the terms and conditions of the loans given and guarantees
provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or
receipts have been regular.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety
days in respect of loans given or advances made in nature of loan.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year,
which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to the same party.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, in respect of investments made and loans,
guarantees and security given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company pursuant to the
rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of
the records with a view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted/ accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax
(‘GST"), Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities,
though there have been slight delay in a few cases of Goods and Services Tax ('
Income-tax.




(viii)

)

(xi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST,
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, statutory dues relating to GST, Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess or other statutory which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Amount " Assessment Forum where .
Demanded | Year | disputeis pending
CIT(A), Mumbai

|
' Particulars !

i_}ncomc'].'ax | Rs.391.59 Lakhs 12_01-8-]9

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loan were applied for the purpose for which the loan were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short
term basis have been used for long term purposes by the company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statement of the Company, we report that the company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedure performed by
us, we report that company has not raised loan during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or by further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Comp
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.




(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no material fraud by or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and the explanations given to us, the
transactions with the related parties were in compliance with Sec 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, where applicable and the details of the same have been disclosed in the Ind
AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standard.

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the
period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment
Companies Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying, the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to ek

that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the CompgQ




(xx)

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirement as stipulated by the provision of section 135 are not applicable to the
company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For BHUWANIA & AGRAWAL ASSOCIATES

(Chartered Accountants)
(Firm Registration no. 101483W)

SE})LJLUQ:’\W:‘A
.

Shubham Bhuwania

(Partner)

Membership No.: 171789

UDIN : 22171789AJXUEV4762
Date :30/05/2022

Place : Mumbai



Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN: UTO100MH1987PTC 044983

Balance Sheet As At March 31, 202z

(Amount in rupees , except share and per share dala, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note no. As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
ASSETS
A Non-<current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 4 2,03,861 2,51.451 3,05,662
b} Financial assets
.} Investments 5 8,51,29.950 8,51,29,950 8,49,25,200
ii) Other financial assets 6 4,28,284 4,28 284 9,96,348
c) Deferred tax assets (Net) ¥ 11,80,233 13,88 344 10,84 569
(A 8,69,52,328 8,71,98,029 8.7311,779
B Current assets
a) Inventories ) 1,30,66,69,312 1,21,76,80,108 1,38,96,79,953
b) Financial assets
i} Trade recewables 10 10,62,00,627 11,66,74,989 12,58,62,125
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1 5.21.68,606 3,83,58,655 13.78,233
i) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 1,22.54.260 1.17.33,219 1,10,79,294
iv) Loans 13 37,60,000 1,56,500 3,15,000
v} Other current financial assets 14 55,00,000 57,85,000 1,65,000
c} Other current assets 15 33,00,07 918 33,33,52.885 35,85,97 022
d) Income tax assets (Net) a 51,93 548 18,23, 780 -
(B) 1,82,17 54 270 1,72,55,65,137 1,88,68,76,628
TOTAL (A+B) 1,90 87 M|598 1£1|37|63|136 1|!7!41 Esalao'r
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A Equity
a) Equity share capital 16 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
b) Cther equity 17 89100016 89221672 88549100
(A) 11,91,00,016 119221672 11,85,49,100
Liabilities
B Non<urrent liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 18 50,85,32,230 96,09.91.003 79.24,97 806
i) Other financial fabilities 19 15,48,583 13.,04,246 14,12,306
b) Provisions 20 455,095 15,860,184 14,08,861
(B) 51,05,35,908 96,38,75,433 79.53,19.173
€ Current liabilities
a) Financial habilities
i} Short term borrowings 21 T4,54,73,002 30,55,87,089 47.53.43,000
ii) Trade payables 22
- Amount due to Micro and small enterprises 11,711,163 9,69,459 8.28,960
- Amount cue to ather than Micro and 3,2532.275 3.64.21.637 3,34 23368
small anterprises
iif) Other iinancial liabilities 23 35.49.41.300 17,78,07,618 2,89,30,003
b) Other current kabilities 24 144737141 20,82,91,621 52,06,48,106
c) Provisions 25 2,74 892 588,637 6,60.300
d) Current income tax liabilities 26 - - 476,306
(c) ; 1,27,90,70,673 72,96,66 061 1,06,03,20,134
TOTAL (A+B+C) 1.90,87,06,598 1,81,27,63,166 1,97.41,88.407
Significant accounting policies and notes to 11052

financial statements

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our audit report of even date

For Bh ia & Ag 1A i For and on behalf of the Board of Directol
Chartered Accountants Accord,Estates Private Limited
Firm Registration No. 101483W

'-%f) Ve o \

Shubham Bhuwania & -
Partner

Membership No. : 171789
UDIN.: Z2171789AJXUEV4TE2

Place: Mumbai /
Date: 30/05/2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2022




Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN: UTO100MH198TPTC 044983

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in rupees, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
no. 31st March, 2022  31st March, 2021
A Income
Revenue from operations 27 29,44 17 340 60,74,08,281
Other income 28 T.63,735 2,13.40,474
Total income (A) 29,51,81,075 62,8748, 755
B Expenses
Operating and project expenses 29 13,93,00,333 26,47 44 375
Changes in inventories of construction work in progress 30 (8,89,89,204) 17,19,99,845
Employee benefit expenses A 41,52 383 77.96,917
Finance costs 32 23.46,15 997 17,98,18,388
Depreciation and amortisation 33 47,580 48,969
Other expenses 34 50,20,315 2957600
Total expenses (B) 29,41,47,414 62,73,66,094
C Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items & tax (A - B) (C) 10,33,661 13,682,661

D Tax expense:

- Current tax 12,30,000 7,22,000

- Deferred tax - Charge/ (Credit) 1,27,185 (2,22 578)
Total tax expense (D) 13,657,185 499422

E Profit/(loss) after tax (C - D)(E) (3.23,524) 8,83,240

F Other comprehensive income / (loss)
a) (i) tems not to be reclassified subsequently to Statement

of Profit and Loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans - gain/(loss) 2,712,795 (2,91,864)
- Income: tax relating to ftems that will be classified to profit (70,927) B1,197

or loss - (Charge)/ Credit

b (i) ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to statement = =
of Profit and Loss

(il) Income tax relating to items that will be classified to profit - -
or loss

Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (F) 2!D1IB§§ (2,10,667)

H Total comprehensive income! (loss) for the year (E + F) [1!21 IE56! 5!'.'2551'2

Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share (1.08) 2.94
Equity shares [Face value of Rs, 100 each]

Significant accounting policies and notes to financial 1to52
statements I

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements . 3

As per our audit report of even date S

For Bhi ia & Agrawal A i For and on behalf of the Board of Direc
Chartered Accountants Accord Estates Private Limited d
Firm Reqistration No. 101483W

O '
55/, Utucia e
A oo, Sielte i3 i
Shubham Bhuwania *©
Partner
Membership No. : 171789
UDIN.: 22171789AJXUEVAT52

Rajan Thomas
Director

(DIN : 00634576)

/S Aahul Thomas
Director
(DIN : 00318419)

Place: Mumbai  /

Place: Mumbai /
Date: 30/05/2022

Date: 30/05/2022




Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN: UT0100MH1987PTC044983

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Amount in rupees, excepl share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

(a)

L)

Equity share capital
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March,, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 01st April, 2020
Opening balance 3,00,00,000 3,00.00,000 3,00,00,000
Changes in equity share capital during the - -
Closing balance 3,00,00,000 3,00.00,000 3,00,00.000
(Refer note 16)
Other equity
Particulars Reserves & surplus ocr Total other
Securities Debentu Retained R ement equity
Premi Redempti Earnings gain/ (loss) of
Reseerve Reserve defined benefit plan
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 4,55,00,000 - 4,31,94 602 (1.45,502) 8,85,49,100
Profit/ (loss) for the year - - 8,83.240 - B,83,240
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - - - (2,10,B667) (2,10,667)
Debenture Redemption Reserve created - 2,57,76.667 {2,57,76,667) - -
Bal as at 31st March, 2021 _4,55,00,000 2,57,76,667 1,83,01,175 (3,56,169) 89221672
Particulars Reserves & surplus ocr Total other
Securities Debenture Retained R it equity
Premi Redemption Earning gain/ (loss) of
Reseerve Reserve defined benefit plan
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 4,55,00.000 2,57,76,667 1.83.01,175 (3,56,169) 8,92,21,672
Profit/ (loss) for the year » - (3,23,524) =
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - - < 2,071,868
Debenture Redemption Reserve reversed - (62,48,889) 62,48 889 - o
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 4!55!DDIGDU 1!95!2'!‘??3 ZEQIZGIS'W {1 !54 3011 EI'MIWIMB

(Refer note 17)

*Other comprehensive income

As per our audil report of even date

For Bh ia & Ag I A iat
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101483W

Ph vrvon a
Tl e gl Lo
Shubham Bhuwania g
Partner
Membership No. : 171789

UDIN.: 22171789AJXUEV4TE2

Place: Mumbal
Date: 30/05/2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Accord FEstates Private Limited

N,

Rajan Thomas
Director
(DIN | DDB34576)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2022

/ha' hul Thomas

Director
(DIN - 00318419)

(3,23,524)
201868 |



Accord Estates Private Limited
CIN: UT0100MH1987PTC044983
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in rupees, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit /{loss) before taxes 10,33,661 13,82.661
Interest expenses 23,10,66,780 17,92,56,082
Interest income (4,40,9686) (11,62,945)
Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment (Net) - 5242
Depreciation and amortization 47,590 48,969
Provision for expected credit losses - Expenses/ (Reversal) 7.97.410 12,12.413
Dividend income (5,000) -
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 23,24,99,475 18,07 42,422
Movements in working capital : [Including Current and Non-current]
(Increase) / decrease in loans, trade receivable and other assets 97.03.420 2,81,25424
(Increase) / decrease in inventories (8.89.89.204) 17,19,99,845
Increase / (decrease) in trade payable, other liabilities and provisions 5,57,86,134 (16.25,15,137)
20,89,99,825 21,83,52,555
Adjustment for:
Direct taxes paid (including tax deducted at source) (45,55,671) (29,34,865)
Net cash generated/ (used in) from operating activities...(A) 20,44, 44 154 21,54,17,689
_—
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale/ redemption of investment - (2,04.750)
Interest income 4,40,966 11.62.945
Dividend income 5,000 -
(Increase)/decrease in bank balance [Current and non-current] (5,21,041) (6.53,925)
(other than cash and cash equivalent)
(75,075) 3,084,270
Adjustment for:
Direct taxes (paid)/ refund received (including tax deducted at source) - (44.097) (87,221)
(Net)
Net cash (used in) / from investing activities... (B) {1,19,172) .21171049
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term borrowings - 34,53,05,596
Repayment of long term borrowings (10,83,08,699) -
Proceeds from/ (Repayment) of short term borrowings (Net) 9.57,36,740 (34.65,68,501)
Interest paid (Including other borrowing cost) (17,79,41,753) (17.72,52 439)

Net cash (used in) / from financing activities... (C)

{19,05,13,712)

(17,85,15,343)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+ B+C) 1,38,11,270 3,71,19,395
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3.83,57,336 12,37,940
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer note (ii) below) 5.21,68,606 3.83.,57.336
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,38,11,270 _;;1,19,395
Notes:
(i) Cash flow statement has been prepared under "indirect method" as set out in Ind AS 7 - "Cash Flow Statement”
(it) Breakup of cash and cash equivalent is as given below:
Particulars As at As at As at

31st March 2022 J31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Cash and cash equivalent (Refer note 11) 5,21,68,606 3,83,58,655 13,78,233
Less: Bank balance - book overdraft (Refer note 23) - 1,320 1,40,292
Net cash and cash equivalent as disclosed in cash flow 5,21,68,606 3,83,57,336 12,37,940
statement above




Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN: UT0100MH198TPTC044983

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in rupees, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

(iit) Refer note 42 for other cash flow statement related notes,

Significant accounting policies and notes to financial 11to 52
statements

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Bhuwania & Agrawal Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Accord Estates Private Limited
Firm Registration No. 101483wW

//
Rahul Thomas

Director
(DIN : 0031B419)

Partner
Membership No. : 171789
UDIN.: 22171789AJXUEV4762" &

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2022 Date: 30/05/2022




Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN No: U70100MH1987PTC044983

Basis of Significant Accounting Policies for the period ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in rupees, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

1. Company’s background
Accord Estates Private Limited (“the Company”) is a private limited company domiciled and incorporated in
India under the Companies Act, 2013 vide CIN No. U701 00MH1887PTC044983 and incorporated on 10th
September 1986. The registered office of the Company is located at 14th, Floor-2, Nirmala Building, Miya
Mohd Chhotani, 2® X Road, Mahim Mumbai 400 016, India.
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development in India.

Ind AS Financial Statements are approved by the Company's Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30"

May 2022.
Z, Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
2. Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended
from time to time.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2021, the Company had prepared its
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (referred as “Indian
GAAP"). These are the Company's first annual financial statements prepared complying in all material
respects with the Ind AS nolified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Financial Statements comply with Ind AS notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA'). The
Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in the preparation of its opening Ind AS
Balance Sheet at 1st April, 2020 throughout all periods presented, as if these policies had always been in
effect and are covered by Ind AS 101 “First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”. The transition
was carried out from Indian GAAP which is considered as the previous GAAP, as defined in Ind AS 101.
The reconciliation of effects of the transition from Indian GAAP on the equity as at 1" April, 2020 and 31*
March, 2021 is disclosed in note 49 to these Financial Statements.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Standalone Balance Sheet based on current/ non-
current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is current when:

* ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified
as non-current assets and liabilities, respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents.

The operating cycle of the Company's real estate operations varies from project to project depending on
the size of the project, type of development, project complexities and related approvals. Assets and
Liabilities are classified into current and non-current based on the operating cycle.




Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN No: U70100MH1987PTC044983

Basis of Significant Accounting Policies for the period ended 31" March 2022
(Amount in rupees, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.2,

3.3.

3.4,

3.4.1.

Functional and presentation of currency
The Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupees which is also the Company's functional currency.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. A fair value measurement assumes
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal market or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a markel participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Standalone Financial
Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. The fair value hierarchy is described as below:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted price in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone Financial Statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have accurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value
hierarchy.

Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purpose using methods as
prescribed in “Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement”.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as on the date of
Standalone Financial Statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the periods
presented. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
Slandalone Financial Statements were prepared. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates
are revised and future periods are affected.

Key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. Significant estimates and critical judgement in applying these
accounting policies are described below:

Significant estimates
i) Revenue recognition and construction work in progress
. Revenue to be recognized, stage of completion, projections of cost and revenues expected from

pigject and realization of the construction work in progress have been determined based on
agement estimates which are based on current market situations/ technical evaluations.




Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN No: UT0100MH1987PTC044983

Basis of Significant Accounting Policies for the period ended 31* March 2022
(Amount in rupees, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

* In respect of real estate project (Construction work in progress) which are at initial preparatory
stage [i.e. acquisition of land / development rights], realization of the construction work in progress
have been determined based on management estimates of commercial feasibility and management
expectation of future economic benefits from the projects. These eslimales are reviewed
periodically by management and revised whenever required.

The consequential effect of such revision in estimates is considered in the year of revision and in the
balance future period of the project. These estimates are dynamic in nature and are dependent upon
various factors like eligibility of the tenants, changes in the area, approval and other factors. Changes
in these estimates can have significant impact on the financial results of the Company and its
comparability with the previous year however quantification of the impact due to change in said
estimates cannol be quantified.

ii) Defined benefit obligations

The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation along with leave
salary are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate, attrition rates and anticipation
of future salary increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

iii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabililies recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted price in active markets since they are unquoted, their value is measured
using valuation technique including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

3.4.2. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty
i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

i) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected credit loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation based on industry practice, Company's past history, and
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

3.5. Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
Recognition and measurement

Properties plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, Cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment includes purchase price including non - refundable taxes and duties, borrowing cost
directly attributable to the qualifying asset, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for its intended use and the present value of the expected cost for the
dismantling/decommissioning of the asset,

Parts (major components) of an item of property, plant and equipments having different useful lives are
accounted as separale items of property, plant and equipments.

Subsequent costs are included in the assel's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of it and loss as
incurred.




Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN No: U70100MH1987PTC044983

Basis of Significant Accounting Policies for the period ended 31* March 2022
(Amount in rupees, except share and per share data. unless otherwise stated)

3.6.

3.7.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of cost incurred on property, plant and equipment under construction /
acquisition that are not yet ready for their intended use at the Balance Sheet Date.

Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment (other than capital work in progress) is provided on a
written down value (WDV) over their useful lives which is in consonance of useful life mentioned in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation methads, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-
recognised.

Leases

The determination of whether a contract is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the contract
at the inception of the lease. The contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract provide lessee, the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. A lessee does not
have the right to use an identified asset if, at inception of the contract, a lessor has a substantive right to
substitute the asset throughout the period of use.

The Company accounts for the lease arrangement as follows:
(i) Where the Company entity is the lessee

The Company applies single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short term
leases and leases of low value assets. On the commencement of the lease, the Company, in its Balance
Sheet, recognize the right of use asset at cost and lease liability at present value of the lease payments to
be made over the lease term.

Subsequently, the right of use asset are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment loss. Lease liability are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The lease payment made, are apporlioned between the finance charge and the reduction of lease
liability, and are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Lease deposits given are a financial asset and are measured at amortised cost under Ind AS 109 since it
satisfies Solely Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI) condition. The difference between the present
value and the nominal value of deposit is considered as prepaid rent and recognised over the lease term.
Unwinding of discount is treated as finance income and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Where the Company entity is the lessor

The lessor needs to classify its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. Lease arrangements
where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are
recognized as operating lease. The Company has only operating lease and accounts the same as follows:

Assets given under operating leases are included in investment properties. Lease income is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the lease term, unless there is another
systematic basis which is more representative of the time pattern of the lease.

Initial direct costs incurred in neggtiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Lease deposits received are financial instruments (financial liability) and are measured at fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the fair value and the nominal value of deposits is considered
as rent in advance and recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis. Unwinding of discount is
treated as interest expense (finance cost) for deposits received and is accrued as per the EIR method.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Recognition and measurement




Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN No: U70100MH1987PTC044983

Basis of Significant Accounting Policies for the period ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in rupees, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Intangible assets are recognized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to asset
will flow to the Company and the cost of asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at
cost of acquisition/development less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss if any.

Cost of an intangible asset includes purchase price including non - refundable taxes and duties, borrowing
cost directly attributable to the qualifying asset and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets under development comprises of cost incurred on intangible assets under development
that are not yet ready for their intended use as at the Balance Sheet date.

Amortization and useful lives

Computer softwares are amortized in 3 years on Written Down Value (WDV). Amortisation methods and
useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

In case of assels purchased during the year, amortization on such assets is calculated on pro-rata basis
from the date of such addition.

3.8. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for any indication of impairment
based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an
assel exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of a) fair value of assets less
cost of disposal and b) its value in use. Value in use is the present value of future cash flows expected to
derive from an assets or Cash-Generating Unit (CGU).

Based on the assessment done at each balance sheet date, recognised impairment loss is further
provided or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. After recognition of impairment loss or
reversal of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation charge for the asset is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life. If the conditions leading to recognition of impairment losses no longer
exist or have decreased, impairment losses recognised are reversed to the extent it does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined after considering depreciation / amortisation had no
impairment loss been recognised in earlier years.

3.9, Inventories
Inventory of finished units are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Construction work in progress (CWIP) is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. CWIP includes cost
of land, premium or fees paid in connection with acquisition of transferable development rights, sub-
development rights, initial costs for securing projects, initial premium paid on assignment/transfer of project,
construction costs, cost of redevelopment, settlement of claims relating to land, and attributable borrowing
cast and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the Company to project. In case of projects at
initial stage, net realisable value is computed based on the management estimate of future realisable value.

Construction costs include all cost related to development of real estate project and exclude all costs
pertaining to selling and marketing activities which are considered as indirect cost and are directly charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.10. Revenue recognition
(i) Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customer is recognised, when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is
expected to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company assesses its revenue
arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The
Company concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The specific
recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
Revenue is recognized as follows:
(a) Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received! receivable, taking into account
ally defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the

Q




Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN No: U70100MH1987PTC044983

Basis of Significant Accounting Policies for the period ended 31* March 2022
(Amount in rupees, except share and per share dala, unless otherwise stated)

311,

3.12.

government and is net of rebates and discounts. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has concluded
that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

Revenue is recognised in the income statement to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

The Company has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers' to recognise revenue in the Standalone Financial Statements. The Company satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs; or

b) The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced; or

c) The Company'’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where any of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at
the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time or over a period of time based on various conditions as
included in the contracts with customers.

(ii) Finance income

Finance income is recognised as it accrues using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Finance
income is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

(ili) Revenue from lease rentals and related income
Lease income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the lease
term, unless there is another systematic basis which is more representative of the time pattern of the
lease. Revenue from lease rentals is disclosed net of indirect taxes, if any.

Revenue from property management service is recognised at value of service and is disclosed net of
indirect taxes, if any

(iv) Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(v) Other income

Other incomes are accounted on accrual basis, except interest on delayed payment by debtors and
liquidated damages which are accounted on acceptance of the Company's claim.

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of the transaction. As at the Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are translated at closing
exchange rate. Exchange difference arising on settlement or translation of foreign currency monetary
items are recognised as income or expense in the year in which they arise.

Foreign currency non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of transactions.

Employee benefits

e  Short term employee benefits
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All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term employee benefits and they are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

¢ Post-employment benefits & other long term benefits
a. Defined contribution plan

The defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company
contributes fixed contribution to a Government Administered Fund and will have no obligation to
pay further contribution. The Company's defined contribution plan comprises of Provident Fund,
Labour Welfare Fund Employee State Insurance Scheme, National Pension Scheme, and
Employee Pension Scheme. The Company's contribution to defined contribution plans are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

b. Post-employment benefit and other long term benefits

The Company has defined benefit plans comprising of gratuity and other long term benefits in the
form of leave benefits. Company's obligation towards gratuity liability is unfunded, The present
value of the defined benefit obligations and other long term employee benefits is determined
based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount
defined benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date
on Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.

For gratuity plan, re-measurements comprising of (a) actuarial gains and losses, (b) the effect of
the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) and
(c) the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the post-employment
benefits liability) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of defined benefit plan are recognised when the
curtailment or settlement occurs.

Actuarial gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect of changes in
actuarial assumptions for employee benefit plan [other than gratuity] are recognized immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expense.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs (net of interest income on temporary investments) that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Ancillary cost
of borrowings in respect of loans not disbursed are carried forward and accounted as borrowing cost in the
year of disbursement of loan. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,
Borrowing costs consist of interest expenses calculated as per effective interest method, exchange
difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are treated as an adjustment to the
borrowing cost and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Taxes on income

Tax expenses for the year comprises of current tax, deferred lax charge or credit and adjustments of taxes
for earlier years. In respect of amounts adjusted outside profit or loss (i.e. in other comprehensive income
or equity), the corresponding tax effect, if any, is also adjusted outside profit or loss.

Provision for current tax is made as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temparary
differences, carry forward lax losses and allowances can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) &am been
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enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be utilized. In situations where the Company has
unused tax losses and unused tax credits, deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
they can be utilized against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets are reviewed for the
appropriateness of their respective carrying amounts at each Balance Sheet date.

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assels. It recognises
previously unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit allow deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Cash & cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances, deposits with banks (other than on lien)
and all short term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect
of which a reliable estimate can be made. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet
date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders' and
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of
shares also includes fixed number of equity shares that are issuable on conversion of compulsorily
convertible preference shares, debentures or any other instrument, from the date consideration is
receivable (generally the date of their issue) of such instruments.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable lo the shareholder’ and
weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during the year including
share options, convertible preference shares and debentures, except where the result would be anti-
dilutive. Potential equity shares that are converted during the year are included in the calculation of diluted
eamnings per share, from the beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to
the date of conversion.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of ancther entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cther than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as apprepriate, on
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initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or |oss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except
for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or less on initial recognition);

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

* the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income"
line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to
investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.
These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other
comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
* Ithas been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

* On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

» Itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.
Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part
of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised
in profit or loss are included in the ‘Other income' line item,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on

initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for
investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading. 7
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Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains
or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other
income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the
amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model based on
‘simplified approach’ for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss
allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to
the twelve month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is
required fo adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized
is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial asset

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the assel and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if
such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial
asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option
to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of
the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss
would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts.

Financial liability and equity instrument

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equily instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the effective interest.method or
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However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for de-
recognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by
the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate
are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is
held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

» ithas been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term: or

* on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognised by
the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

* such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise;

= the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the
Company's documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
Companying is provided internally on that basis; or

= it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability thal is altributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The
remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income
are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are
designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequently measured al amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.
Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs' line
item. The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debitor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the a debt instrument.
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Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

+ the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS
109; and

* the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values
and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

+ the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS
109; and

+ the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amounl of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18,

Compound financial instruments

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at fair value of a similar
liability that does not have an equity component. The equity component is recognised Initially as the
difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the fiability and the equity
components, if material, in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition except on conversion
or expiry.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
seltle on a nel basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Reclassification

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a
change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to
be infrequent. The management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company's operations. A change in the business model occurs when
the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the
Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification
date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model,
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
losses) or interest.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss. i
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4 |Property, plant and equipment Plant & Vehicles Computer Office Total
Equipment Equipments

Gross carrying Amount
Cost as at 1st April, 2020 1,20,586 43,52,338 42,898 1,683,580 46,99 402
Additions 5 = = = -
Disposal | Adjustment - - - 1.26.475 126475
As at 31st March, 2021 1.20,586 43,52,338 42,898 57,105 45,72,927
Depreciation and Impairment
As at 31st March, 2020 B5,352 40,92,152 40,753 1,75,483 43,93,740
Depreciation charge for the year 6.401 42 568 - - 48,969
Disposal / Adjustment - - - 1.21,233 121,233
As at 31st March, 2021 91,753 41,34,720 40,753 54,250 43,21 476
Net carrying amount 28,833 217,618 2,145 2,855 2,51,451

Gross carrying Amount

Cost as at 1st April, 2021 1,20,586 43,52,338 42898 57,105 4572 927
Additions - - = - 5
Disposal / Adjustment - . = = 5
As at 31st March 2022 1,20,586 43,52,338 42,898 57,105 45,72,927
Depreciation and Imp

As at 1st April, 2021 91,753 4134720 40,753 54,250 43,21.476
Depreciation charge for the period 5,238 42,352 - - 47,590
Disposal f Adjustment - = - - -
As at 31st March 2022 96,991 41,77,072 40,753 54,250 43,69,066

Net carrying amount 23,595 1,75,266 2,145 2,855 2,03,861
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|Investments As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Investment in Equity shares (Non-trade):
(i) Unquoted Equity Shares, Fully paid up, at cost
Associates Concern
Suraj Estate Developers Limited
Face value 5 10 10
Number of shares 15,00,000 3,00.000 3,00,000
Amaunt 30,00,000 30,00,000 30,00,000
Subsidiary Company
Uditi Premises Private Limited
Face value 10 10 10
Number of shares 9,100 9,100 9.100
Amount 8,21,04,750 8.21,04,750 8,19,00,000
(ii) Ungquoted equity shares, fully paid up, at fair value through profit and loss
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd,
Face value 10 10 10
MNumber of shares 2,520 2,520 2,520
Amount 25,200 25,200 25,200
Total 8,51,29,950 8|51 !29!950 a!w!zs!zon
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 8,51,29,950 8.51,29.950 8,49,25 200
Market value of quoted investments = - =
Aggragate amount of impairment in value of investments - - -
Other financial assets As at As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Security deposit
- With Government authorities 1.24,563 1,24,563 1.24,563
- With Others 303,721 3.03.721 B.71,785
Total 4.28 284 4,28.284 9,96,348
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Significant components of net deferred 1ax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets
Difference in net carrying value of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets as 1,94 691 2,26,033 26331
per income tax and books
Deferred tax on expected Credit losses 8,05 745 598418 283191
Expense allowed on payment basis as per Income tax act, 1961 1,89,797 563893 5,368,008
Sub-total (A) 11,90,233 13,688,344 10,684,569
Deferred tax liabilities & 5 5
Sub-total (B} ‘ = :
Deferred tax assets/{liability) 11,90,233 13,88,344 10,84,569
Income tax assets (net) As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Income tax (net of provisions) 51,93,548 18,23,780 -
Total 51 I93|548 18,23,780 -
Inventories As at As at As at
(At lower of cost or net realisable value) 31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Construction work-in-progress 1,30,66,69,312 1.21.76.80,108 1,38,96,79,953
Total 1,30,66,69,312 1!21!?EIW!108 1,38,96,79,953
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10 |Trade receivable As at As at As at
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) 31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
-Considered gocd 10,92,99,645 11,89,76,597 12,67,51,320
Sub-total 10,92,99,645 11,89,76,597 12,67,51,320
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 30,99,018 23,01,608 10,89,195
Total 10,62,00,627 11,66,74,889 12,56,62,125
The above amount includes -

- Receivables from related parties 2,54,13,945 35,53,945 -
- Others 8,38.85.700 11,54,22 652 12,67.51,320
10,92, 99 645 11,89,76,597 12,67,51,320
10.1 Trader ble ageing analysi
Trade receivables As at As at As at

Undisputed Trade Receivables-considered good

31st March 2022

31st March, 2021 O1st April 2020

- Less than & months 54130131 7.11,14,547 §.75,10,679
-6 Months - 1 year 1,78,500 - -

- 1-2 years 243,47 435 2,76,25,997 1,71,25.261
- 2-3 years 1,14,80,526 82,52 953 1,10.08.500

More than 3 years 1,81,63,063 1,18,83,100 11,05,880
m 10,92,99 645 11,89,76,597 12,67,51,320

Disy i Trade Receivabl
- Less than 6 manths

-6 Months - 1 year

- 1-2 years

-2-3 years

Mare than 3 years

ed good

10.2

Total__

The Company has entered into contracts for the sale of residential units on structured instaimenl

I basis. The instalments are specified in the contracts. The

Company is exposed to credit risk in respect of instalments due. However, the legal ownership of residential unils are transferred lo the buyer only after all the

instaiments are recovered. In addition, instalment dues are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Company's exposure to credit risk is not
significant. In determining the allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit
loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix [though ne signficant credit risk involved), The provision matrix takes into account historical
credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due

and rates used in the provision matrix,

Mo in the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables are as As at As at As at
follows: 31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 23,01,608 10,839,185 431326
Add: Provided/ (Reversal) during the year 7.97410 12,12,413 6,57 B69
Less: Amount Written off = - -
Balance at the end of the year 23.01,608 10.89.195 |
10.3 Refer Note 18 for information on hypothecation of trade receivables,
11 |Cash and cash equivalent As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Balances with bank
- In current accounts 5,21,54,470 3,77.77,040 13.08,160
Cash in hand 14,136 5,81615 70,073
Total 531153 606 3!83!‘“!655 13!'.?8!233
12 |Other bank balance As at As at As at
31st March 2022 J1st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Balance with bank
Balance with bank [Earmarked bank balance] 11,961 3,87,788 12,401 24|
In Fixed Deposits:
- With maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months from reporting date 1,22 42 299 11345431 98,38.170
Total 1,22!54 260 1,17,33.219 1,10;9& I
12.1 Fixed deposit is given as margin maney to the Bank for guarantee given by bank to Government and other authorities on behalf of the Company,
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13 |Loans As at As at As at
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) 31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Loans and advances to related parties (Refer note 13.1 and 38.3) 25,40,000 - 50,000
Advances to staff 2,20,000 1.56,500 2,65,000|
Total 37,60,000 1,56,500 3,15,000

13.1 Disclosures of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMPs) and the related parties: )
Type of borrower

Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan outstanding
As at As at As at

31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Promoters - = =

Directors - - =
|KMPs e

Related pariies 35,440,000 - 50,000

Type of borrower Percentage of total loan or advances in the nature of loans
As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Promoters = - -

Directors - - "
Ps ¥ =

Related parties 100.00% - 100.00%

2

13.2 As required under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 loan given to the related parties is for general business purpose.

14 |Other current financial assets As at As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good uniess otherwise stated) 31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Receivable from related party (Refer note 38.3) §5,00,000 57.85,000 1.65,000
Total 55.00,000 57,85,000 1,65,000

15 |Other current assets As at As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Balances with Government authorities 68,66,738 1.16,32,646 2,59,31,220
Prepaid expenses - 13,910 42,623
Advance against Property 2,02,61,965 2,01,66,965 1,94,31,965
Advances to supphers and cthers - - 71.27,000
Advances 1o vendors 17,22,955 3,83,105 49,07,955
Receivable under Joint Development Agreement (Refer nate 15.1 ) 30,11,56.259 30,11,56,259 30,11,56,259
Total 33,00,07,918 33,33,52,885 35,85,97,022

 —

15.1 Represent amount receivable which would be adjusted against future obligations/commitments under the Joint Development Agreement,
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16 |Share capital As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 100 each

No. of shares 3,00,000 3,00,000 3.00.000
Amount 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000 3,00,00.000
Total 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

No. of shares 3,00,000 3,00,000 3,00,000
Amount 3,00,00,000 3,00.00,000 3,00,00,000
Total 392&,000 3 000 SEWID'D!DOO

16.1 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares :
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per
share. In the evenl of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitlied to receive any of the remaining assels of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. However, there are no preferential amounts inter se equity shareholders. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders (after due adjustment in case shares are not fully paid up).

16.2 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:
There has been no change/ movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the penod/ year.

16.3 Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5 % shares and promoters shareholding

Particulars Details As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020

Suraj Estate Developers Private Limited Number of Shares 295125 1,086,125 1,06,125

Shareholders % 98.38 35.38 35.38
Thomas Rajan Number of Shares - 1,06.500 1,06.500

Shareholders % - 35.50 35.50
Rahul Thomas Number of Shares - 33,000 38,000

Shareholders % - 13.00 13.00
Sujatha Thomas Number of Shares - 43,500 43,500

Shareholders % - 14,50 14.50

17 |Other equity As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020

Debenture Redemption Reserves
Opening Balance 2,57.76,667 - :
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss = 2,57,76,667 -
Less: Deductions during the year (62,48,889) - -
Closing balance 1,95,27,778 2,57,76,667 -
Securities Premium reserve
Opening Balance 4,55,00,000 4,55,00,000 4.,55,00,000
Additions during the year - - -
Deductions during the year - = =
Closing Balance 4,55,00,000 4,55,00,000 4,55,00,000
| Retained earnings
As per last balance sheet 1,83.01175 4,31,94,602 4,08,34T17
Add: Profit/{loss) for the year (3.23,524) B.83.240 25,59,885
Add: Transferred from debenture redemption reserve 62 48,889 - -
Less: Transferred to debenture redemption reserve - (2,57,76,667) -
Closing balance 2,42,26,540 1,83,01,175 4,31,94,602
Other comprehensive income
As per last balance sheet (3.56,169) (1.45,502) (9,750)
Add: Movement in OCI (Net) during the year 201,868 (2,10,667) (1,35,752)
Closing balance (1,54,301) (3,56,169) (1,45,502)
Total 3!91!00!016 3!92|21,S?2 Blsgliglﬂlﬂ

17.1 Nature and purpose of reserves

{a) Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR)
The Company had issued redeemable non-convertible debentures. In terms of the provisions of Section 76, Debenture Redemption Reserve is being created for
an amount equal to 10% of the value of debentures due for redemption.

(b) Securities Premium Reserve

Securities premium account is used to record the premium on Issue of equily shares, The same is utilised in accordance with the provisions gffe Companies
Act, 2013.
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18 |Borrowings As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020

Non-current borrowings
Secured
-Term loans

- From banks (Refer Note 18.1) 7.41,37,608 12,24,94 603 8,33,19,748|

- From Non-banking financial institutions (Refer Nota 18.2) 78,7847 752 76,65,64,223 71,82,70,219
Unsecured

- Non-convertible debentures (Refer note 18.3) 25,17.30,175 25,98,40,381 -
Sub-total 1.09,37,15,535 1,14,88,99,207 80,15,89,967
Less: Currenl maturities of long term loans from bank and financial institutions 32,56,84 795 4,20,70.833 -
Less: Current maturities of Non-convertible debentures 19,52,77,778 13,47 41 667 -
Less: Interest acerued and due (Refer note 23) 77,68.334 90,21,990 90,92,061
Less: Debenture Redemption Premium Accrued and Due (Refer note 23) 5,64,52,397 2073714 -
Total 50,85,32,230 96,09,91,003 79,24,97,906

18.1 Details of security provided and terms of repayment for loans from banks - Qutstanding loans

(a) ICICIBank - Term Loan and Overdraft Facilities

The bank has sanctioned a term loan of Rs.45 Crores (including OD facility upto 20 Crores). Loan is secured by,
a) First Exclusive charge by way of registered morigage on the Borrower's share in Runwal Nirvana development rights

b) First Pari Passu charge by the way of equitable mortage on Paletta

¢) First Pari Passu charge by the way of equitable monage on Proposed project at plot no. 702/704

d) First Exclusive charge by way of registered morlgage on the Scheduled Recievables |

e) First Pari Passu charge by the way of hypothecation on Scheduled Recievables Il, Scheduled Recievables Iii & Scheduled Recievables V.
f) First Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on the Escrow Account | & the DSR account along with all monies credited/deposited therein,
g) First Pari Passu charge by the way of hypothecation on Escrow Account Il, Escrow Account |1 & Escrow Account IV

Guarantee
a) Corporale guarantee of M/S Sura| Estate Developers Lid, a group company,

b) Unconditional and irrevocable Personal guarantee of Mr.Thomas Rajan, Mr.Rahul Thomas & Mrs, Sujatha Thomas.

Tenure and repayment schedule

(i) Term Loan- Repayment between 15th September 2021 to 15th Nov 2022 in 15 Monthiy Installments of Rs. 59 Lakhs as revised
(i) OD Facility- Repayment between 15th August 2021 to 15th May 2022 in 10 Monthly Instaliments of Rs. 100 Lakhs as revised

(b} ICICI Bank Limited- ECLGS-2 Facility

Total facility of upto Rs.3.70 Crores. Security - Same as above Note 18.1 (a) above,
Tenure and repayment schedule

The loan is repayable in 48 Monthly Instaliment post Moratorium Period of 12 Month starting date of disbursement, i.e., Feb 2021

18.2

(a)
Security

Details of security provided and terms of repayment for loans from Financial Institutions

The term loan has being sanctioned for Rs. 75 Crores Bgainst property bearing CTS no 948/949. This loan is secured by:

a) First and exclusive charge by way of mortgage on the land admeasuring 1857.59 sq mirs bearing CTS Nos. 948 & 949 of village Bandra Division, situate at
Mount Mary Step, Bandra (W), Mumbai-400050 and development rights together with all buildings and structures thereon.
proceeds, both present & future from the above project.

b) First and exclusive on the Scheduled Recievables, Additional Receivables, all insurance
c) Personal Guarantee of the Directors
d) Corporate Gurantee of Suraj Estate Developers Ltd.

Tenure and repayment schedule

Door to door tenar of 60 months from the date of disbursement with principal moratorium of 30 months. The loan is repayable

instalments of Rs.3.09 crores each for next 30 months starting from July 2022 to December 2024.

18.3 Terms of unsecured Non<convertible debentures

including interest in 36 monthly

Unsecured Non-convertible debentures issued to Iconic Praperties Developers PVT LTD (Group entity) are repayable in quarterly instaliments along with

Debenture redemption premium as per agreed terms.

18.4 Based on repayment schedules for borrowings following is maturity profile of term loans from banks/ fi ial instituti and others.
Particulars Maturity Profile
Next 1 year 2-5 Years More than 5 years
Term loan from banks and financial institutions 32,56,84,795 50,86,32,230 %
Term loan from others 19,52,77.778 - -
Total 52,09,62,573 SD!BSIHIZSD -
18.5 Loans guaranteed by directors
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Term loan from banks 8,8265,706 22,34,45929 18,43 44 786
Term loan from Nen Banking Financial institutions 76,78.47 752 76,6564 223 718270219
Total 85,61,13,458 99,00,10,152 ~—_90,26,15,005
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19 |Other non-current financial liabilities As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Retention money payable (Refer note 18.1) 15,48,583 13,04, 246 14,12,306
Total 15,48,583 13,04,246 14,12,306
19.1 Retention money payable analysis
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Others
Less than 1 year 1,15,627 6,63.588 4,968,693
1-2 years 66,852 4,96,693 122,639
2-3 years 12,65455 1,22,639 T.92974
More than 3 years 1,00,649 6,37 620 -
Total 15,48, 583 18,20,540 14,12,306
20 |Provisions As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Provision for employee benefits
- Provision for gratuity (Refer note 41((ii)a)) 4,06 707 14,31,436 13,08 439
- Provision for leave benefit (Refer note 41 ((iNbB)) 48,388 1,48,748 1,00,522
Total 455095 _1580,184 _14,06,961]
21 |Short term borrowings As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Secured
From Bank
- Bank Overdraft (Refer note 18.1) 1.41,28,098 10,09,51 326 10,10,25,038
Current maturities of long term borrowings
- Term loan from bank and financial institutions (Refer note 18.1 and 18.2) 32,56,84,795 4,20,70,833 -
- Non-convertible debentures (Refer note 18.3) 18,52.77.778 13,47,41 667 -
Unsecured
Demand loans
- From Others 3,22,24 235 1,55,70,063 2,28,05,592
- From Related Parties {Refer note 38.3) 17.81,58,996 1,22,53,200 35,15,12 460
Total ?4|54!73!002 30!55 a‘rinas 4?'!53!43!090
22 |Trade payables As at As at As at
st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 22. 1) 11,11,163 9,69 453 B.38.960
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 32532275 3.64,21,837 3,34,23 368
Total ssessas]  Smssigee]  saaeaes |

2241

The amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act (MSMED Act), 2006 has

been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the management. The disclosure relating to Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises is as under:

accounting year
(b) The interest thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the
accounting year
(c) The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16, along with the amount of
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year
(d) Amount of interest due and payable for the year
() Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

(f) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest due as above are actually pald

Particulars As at As at As at

31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Dues remaining unpaid at the year end.
(a) The principle amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the 11,11,163 9,69.459 8,38,960
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22.2 Trade payable analysis
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Micro, small and medium enterprises
Less than 1 year 7,862,459 1,30,499 8,38,960
1-2 years - 8,38 960 -
2-3 years 328704 - -
More than 2 years = = -
Total 11,11,163 9,69,459 8,38,960
Others
Less than 1 year 74,58 261 1,68,00,723 2,16,94,299
1-2 years 2173272 1,06,32,225 30.92,827
2-3 years 3091314 4,88.,689 86,356,242
More than 3 years 1,98,09 429 85,00,000 -
Total 3,25,.32,275 3,64,21 637 3,34,23,368
23 |Other current financial liabilities As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Interest accrued but not due 77,868,334 90,21,990 90,92,061
Debenture Redemption Premium Accrued and Due 5,64,52 397 20,73,714 -
Other payables * 23,22 42 310 16,27,03,583 18,56 448
Bank balance- book overdraft - 1,320 140,292
Retention money payable (Refer nate 19.1) = 6,16,294 -
Payable to Related Party 5,84,78,259 33,90,717 1.78.41,202
Total 35,49,41,300 17,78,07.618 2,89,30,003
*Other payable mainly consist of employee related dues and other accrued expenses. Out of total othar payables as on 31st March 2022 Rs 14,063, 315l March
2021 Rs 1,289,800 & 1st April 2020 Rs 99,800 is salary payable to related party. (Refer note 38.3)
24 |Other current liabilities As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Advance from customers 14,07,31,291 19,77,35.517 51,62,11,059
Statutory dues 40,005,850 1,05,56,104 44 37 047
Total 14,47,37,141 20,82,91,621 52,06,48,106
25 |Provision As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Pravision for employee benefits
- Provision for gratuity (Refer note 41((ii)(a)) 2,69,250 572,472 593428
- Provision for leave benefit (Refer note 41((ii)(b)) 5,642 16,165 66,872
Total 2,74,892 5,88,637 6,560,300
26 |Current income tax liabilities As at As at As at

31st March 2022

31st March, 2021

01st April 2020

Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance tax)

4,76,306

Total

4,76,306

=
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27 |Revenue from operations Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Income from operations
- Revenue recognized from partly completed projects (Refer note 27.1) 29,44 17,340 60,74,08,281
Total 29,4417 340 60,74,08 281
— e et

271 Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 115 - "Revenue from contract with customers

A Nature of Goods and Services
The following is a description of principal activities separated by reportable segments from which the Company generates its
revenue |
The Company is principally engaged in development of real estate in India which includes development and sale of residential and
commercial premises.

B Disaggregation of revenue
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major products lines and timing of revenue :

Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
I Primary geographical markets
Within India 20,44 ,17,340 60,74,08,281
Outside India = -
Total 29,4417 340 60,74,08,281
Il. Major products and services
Sale of Real estate 29,44 17,340 60,74,08,281

C  Contract balances
The table that provides information about receivables, conlract assets and contract liabilities from contract with customers is as

follows:
| Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
|. Receivables, which are included in ‘Trade receivables' 10,62,00,627 11,66,74 989
Il. Contract assets (Unbilled Revenue) = =
lll. Contract liabilities (Advance from Customers - Refer Note 24) 14,07.31,291 19.77,35.517
Total (-l (3.45.30.665) (8,10,60,527)
28 |Other income Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest income on financial assets al amortised cost
- on fixed deposit with bank 440,966 10,87 849
- on others - 75,096
Dividend income 5.000 -
Rent income 1,20,000 1,20,000
Provision for gratuity written back 71,563 -
Provision for leave benefit written back 1,10,883 =
Miscellaneous income 15,323 2,00,57 529
Total 7,863,735 2,13,40.474
29 |QOperating and project expenses Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Land and development right related expenses - 52 50,000
Cost of materials 24,567,395 37.3a4,.207
Labour and contract expenses 8,36,98,748 19,12,49,498
Professional charges 23,53,130 18,71,819
Rates and taxes 63,84 542 71,65,397
Other project expenses 44406518 5.54,73,454
Total 13,93,00,333 26,47,44,375
30 [Changes in inventories of construction work in progress Year ended Year ended %
31stMarch, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 _| )(
Opening construction work in progress 1,21,76,80,108 1,38,96,79,953
Less: Closing construction work in progress 1,30,66,69,312 1.21.76.80,108

Decrease | (Increase) in inventories (8,89,89,204) 17.19!99|845
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31 |Employee henefit

P Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus 4145370 75.05,641

Expenses for gratuity - 281,587

Expenses for leave benefit - 5519

Staff welfare expenses 7.013 4170

Total 41,52,383 77,96,917
32 |Finance costs Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Interest expense 23,10.,66,780 17,92,56,082

Other borrowing costs 3549217 562,308

Total 23,46,15,997 17.98,18,388
33 |Depreciation and amortization expenses Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 47,590 4B,969
Total 47,590 969
34 |Other expenses Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Heat, light and power 2,61,390 -
Licenses. rales and taxes 2.32,590 124122
Repairs expenses for
- Others 37,546 382329
Other commission and charges 18,07 000 -
Printing and slationery 7.298 7.080
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 5 30,500
Travelling and conveyance 8,57.040 8,40,000
Insurance 18,366 46,837
Pravision for expected credit losses 7.97410 12,12,413
Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment (Net) - 5,242
Auditors’ remuneration
- Statutory audit fees 2,80,000 225,000
- Tax audit fees 50,000 40,000
- Certificates & Others 47,700 44100
Miscellaneous expenses 5.23.975 (23)
Total{A+B+C) 50!20I315 29,57,600
35 Income tax
(a) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rates:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Profit before tax (a) 13.06,456 10,980,797
Income tax rate as applicable (b) 26.00% 26.00%
Income tax liability/(asset) as per applicable tax rate (aXb) 339,679 283,607
(1) Expenses disallowed for tax purposes 8,30,872 1.35,056
(ii) Excess Provision as per Income tax 2,795 (439)
(iii) Deferred tax asset on transfer of employee benefit kabilities 255734 -
(iv) Deferred tax asset not recognized in earlier years now allowed (968) -
Tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 14,28,112 4.1&
Note:

The Company offsets tax assels and liabilities in and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income laxes levied by the same authority.

(b} | tax gnised in the Stat of Profit and Loss:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Current tax 3
In respect of the current year 12,30,000 7,22 000 %

12.30.000 £.22.000
Deferred tax
Other items 198,112 (3,03,775)

1,898,112 (3,03,775)|

Total tax expense recognized in curren 14|23!1 12 41 Bgs
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36 Capital i , other i and til liabilities

g9

36.1 Capital Commitments

Estimated of capital commil ts 10 be executed on capital accounts and not provided for is Nil, as at 31st March 2022, (31st March, 2021:
Nil, D1st April 2020: Nil ) (Net of advances).

36.2 Contingent liability (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020

(i) Claims against the Company/ disputed liabilities not
b ledged as debts

Disputed i tax demands 3,91,58,180 3,91,59 180 -
(i) Guarantees given by the Company
Corporate guarantee given to a bank/ financial institutions in 2.,00,00,00,000 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,00,00,000
respect of credit facilities availed by Company under same
management

In respect of (i) above, future cash outflows (including interest/ penalty, if ary) are determinable on receipt of judgement from tax authorities /
settiement of claims or nen-fulfilment of contractual obligations. Furiher, the Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of above. In
respect of (i) above, Company does not expect any cash outflow till such time contractual obligations are fulfilled by the companies for which
guarantees are issued.

36.3 Litigations
The Company is a party to litigations / claims mainly related to cases filed by the tenant / society of regarding Redevelopment Scheme to be
undertaken by the Company like eligibility of tenants, revocation of project or cancellation of NOC granted by MCGM etc. In the opinion of the
management these cases are not tenable and it does not expect any material cash outflow on account of the said cases.

37 Company information

Sr. |Name of the entity Proportion of ownership (%)
No. As at As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Subsidiary
(i) |Uditi Premises Private Limited 91.00% 91.00% 91.00%

38 Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 - Related Party Disclosures

38.1 Name and relationships of related parties:

(a) Holding Company Suraj Estate Developers Limited (W .e.f. 27th October 2021)
(b} Subsidiary Uditi Premises Private Limited
(c) Fellow subsidiaries lconic Property Developers Private Limited (W.e.f. 27th October 2021)

Skyline Realty Private Limited (W .e.f. 27th October 2021)
New Sidharth Enterprises (W.e.f. 27th Oclober 2021)
S.R Enterprises (W e.f. 27th October 2021)

(d)  Entities in which Director/ KMP and relatives have significant  Iconic Property Developers Private Limited (Upto 26th October 2021)

influence Skyline Reatty Private Limited (Upto 26th October 2021)
(Only where there are transactions/ balances) New Sidharth Enterprises (Upto 26th October 2021)
5.R Enterprises (Upto 26th October 2021)
(e} Key Management Personnel [KMP]: Mr. Thomas Rajan, Chairman and Managing Director
(Directors) Mr. Rahul Thomas, Director (Son of Mr. Rajan Thomas)
Mrs. Sujatha Thomas, Director (Spouse of Mr. Rajan Thomas)
(fl  Relatives of KMP Ms. Shweta Thomas (Daughter of Mr. Rajan Thomas)
(Only where there are transactions) Ms. Elizabeth Thomas (Mother of Mr. Rajan Thomas)

Mr. John Thomas (Brother of Mr. Thomas Rajan)
Ms. Lavanya Thomas (Daughter of Mr, Rajan Thomas)
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38.2 Transactions with related parties

Nature of transaction Name of the party Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Funds received Suraj Eslate Developers 13,02,70.360 4,74,10,870
Limited
Skyline Realty Private Limited 11,87,89,000 37,35,000
New Siddharth Enterprises B.82,85 058 7.79,19.688
Rahul Thomas 58,12,500 11,468,800
Funds paid Suraj Estate Developers 13.02,70,360 4,74,10,870
Limited
Iconic Property Developers - 35,15,12 460
Private Limiled
Skyline Realty Private Limited 10,80,784 37,35,000
S.R Enterprises 35.40,000 -
New Siddharth Enterprises 4.00,81,378 6,56,66.488 |
Rahul Thomas 58,12,500 11,46,800
Thomas Rajan - 15,50.000
Elizabeth thomas - 50,000
Sale of Flat [To the extent Thomas Rajan 3,75,00,000 -
Revenue recognized) Rahul Jesu Thomas 4,12 80,000 =
Shwetha Thomas 37,80,000 =
Lavanya Thomas 65,00,000 -
Issue of Non Convertible lconic Property Developers & 35,15,00,000
Debenture Issue Private Limited
Redemption of non- lconic Property Developers 6,24 88,889 9,37,33,333
convertible debentures Private Limited
Debenture Redemption Iconic Property Developers 668,22 452 24729 841
premium Private Limited
Investment in Equity Shares |Thomas Rajan - 2,04, 750
of Uditi Premises Private
limited
Car Hiring Charges Rahul Thomas 840,000 8.40.000
Managerial Remuneration Sujatha Thomas 468756 3,50,000
|Rent Income Thomas Rajan 1.20,000 1,20,000
Corporate guaraniee Suraj Eslate Developers - 1,20,00,00,000
| Received Limited
Amount received for Sura| Estate Developers 10,55,68,367 20,84 37 144
reimbursement of expenses |Limited
lconic Property Developers 946,214 -
Private Limited
New Siddharth Enterprises 8,15,200 -
Sujatha Thomas 1,39.90,500 -
Thomas Rajan 60,63,860 15,50,000
Skyline Realty Private 261,757 P
Limited
Amount paid for Suraj Estale Developers 6.46,63,316 22,2887 629
reimbursement of expenses |Limited
lconic Property Developers 224378 -
Private Limited
New Siddharth Enterprises 8,15.200 -
Sujatha Thomas 11,34.602 -
Thomas Rajan 60,63,860 15,50,000
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38.3 Related party outstanding bal

Nature of transaction Name of the party As at As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Shor term borrowings lconic Property Developers - - 35.15,12.460
Private Limited
Skyline Realty Private Limited 11,77,08,216 - -
New Siddharth Enterpnses 6.04,50,780 1.22 53200 =
Loans & Advances S.R Enterprises 35,40,000 Z =
Elizabeth Thomas - - 50,000
Trade Receivable Thomas Rajan 38,00,000 - -
|Rahul Jesu Thomas B84,89.597 - -
Shwetha Thomas 46,55.056 - -
Lavanya Thomas B3.69,292 - =
Unsecured Non Convertible |lconic Property Developers 19.52,77.778 25,77.66.667 -
Debenture Private Limited
Redemption Premium Iconic Property Developers 564 52 397 20,73.714 -
Accrued and Due Private Limited
Salary payable Sujatha Thomas 14,063 1,29,800 99,500
Car Hinng Charges Payable |Rahul Thomas 3,43,000 - -
Investment in Equity Shares [Uditi Premises Private limited 8,21,04,750 8,21,04,750 8,19,00,000
Suraj Estate Developers 30,00,000 = -
Limited
| Corparale guarantee Sura| Estate Developers - 1,20,00,00,000 1,20,00,00,000
Other Receivable Shwetha Thomas 55,00,000 55,00,000 -
Sujatha Thomas - 285,000 1,65.000
Other Payable Suraj Estate Developers 44295768 3390717 1.78.41,202
Limited
lconic Property Developers 7,21,836 < -
Private Limited
Skyline Realty Private Limited 261,757 = =
Sujatha Thomas 1,28,55,858 - -
Notes:

(a) Transactions with related parties and outstanding balances at the year end are disclosed at transaction value.

38.4 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-
end are unsecured and seftlement occurs in cash, This assessment Is underaken sach financial year through examining the financial position of the
related party and the market in which the related party operates.

39 Breakup of « ion to key gerial per 1
Key management personnel are those persons having autherity and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity,
directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

(a) Compensation to KMP as specified in para 38.1 () above:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Shorl term employee benefits 468,756 3,50.000
Post employment benefits® - =
Total 4,68,756 3,50,000

*As the future hability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an acluanal basis for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the
directors is not ascertainable and therefare, nat included atove.
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40 Earnings per share

@

(0]

(]

(a)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Basic and diluted earning per share
Profit attributabie to the equity holders of the Company (3.23,524) 8.83.240
Weighled average number of equity shares 3,00.000 3,00,000
Face value per equity share (Rs.) 100 100
[Basic and diluted earnings per share (1.08) 2.94

Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’

Disclosures for defined contr plan

There are no obligation on the company towards defined contribulion benefits to the employees.

Disclosures for defined benefit plans
Defined t fit obligations - Gratuity (Unfunded)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act,
every employee who has completed five years of service is entitlied to specific benafit. The level of benafils provided depends on the employee's
length of service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15
days salary (last drawn) for each completed year of service as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity

Risks associated with plan provisions

Acl, 1872, The scheme s unfunded,

Valuations are based on certain assumplions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Company is exposed to various risks as

follows:

Interest rate risk

The defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount rate based on government bonds, If bond
yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Salary inflation risk

Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benafit obligation,

Demographic risk

criteria.

This Is the risk of vanability of results due to unsystomalic nature of decrements that include mortality,
withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is
not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Discount Rate (per annum) 7.15% 6.44%
Salary Escalation (per annum) 6.00% 6.00%
Altrition Rate (per annum) 6.86% 5.22%
Mortality Rate Indian Assured Lives As per Indian
Monrtality 2012-14 Assured lives
(Urban) Mortality (2008-08)
Changes in the present value of obligations Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Liability at the beginning of the year 20,03,908 19,001,867
Interest cost 1.29,052 1,14 873
[Current service cost 1,82 232 1,66,714
Less : Liability Trans, } Qut/ Divestments (9,83.593) -
Benefits paid (3,82,847) (4.71,410)
Past service cost - -
Actuarial (gainMoss on obligations (2,72,795) 291,864
Liability at the end of the year 6,75 957 20,03,908
Table of recognition of actuarial gain / loss Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation for the year (2,72,795) 291,864
Actuarial gair (loss) on assets for the year - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss gnised in Stat t of Profit (2,72,795) 2,91,864
and Loss

Breakup of actuarial (gain) floss: Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021

For determination of the kability in respect of compensated graluity, the Company has used following actuarial assumplions:

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demographic (2,236) 3,237
assumption
Actuarial loss arising from change in financial assumption (30,084) (37,292)
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from experience (2,40,475) 325919
Total (2,72,795) 2,91,864
| Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet: As at Year ended As at

31st March 2022 | 31st March, 2021 1st April 2020
Liability at the end of the year 6.75,957 20,03,908 19,01,867
Fair value of plan assets al the end of the year - - -
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 6,75,957 20,03,908 19,01,867
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(b)

0}

|Expenses recognized in the Income Statement: Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Current service cost 1,82,232 1.66.714
Interest cost 1,29,052 1,14, 873
Expected return on plan assets - =
Less: Benefits paid (3.82,847)
Past Service Cost = =
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (2,72,795) 2,91,864
Expense/ (income) recognized in
- Statement of Profit and Loss (71,563) 281,587
- Other comprehensive income (2,72,795) 2,91,864
Balance sheet reconciliation As at As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Opening net liability 20,03,908 19,01,867 15,73,330
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss & OC! 38,489 573451 4,65492
Less: Liability transferred out/ divestments (8,83,593) - -
Less: Benefits paid (3,82,847.00) (4,71,410) (1,36,955)
A t recognized in Bal Sheet 6,75,957 20,03,908 19,01,867
Current portion of defined benefit obligation 289,250 572472 593428
Nan current portion of defined benefit obligation 4,086,707 14,531,436 13,08,439
Sensitivity analysis of benefit obligation (Gratuity)
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
ajlmpact of change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 1% (36.836) (B5,471) (4,47 666)
b} Impact due to decrease of 1% 43457 96,978 5,14,055
bjimpact of change in salary growth
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 43,523 96,436 4,35.202
b) impact due to decrease of 1% (37,531) (86,573) (3,94,698)
)l t of change in withdrawal rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) withdrawal rate Increase 1,000 645 (4,419)
b) withdrawal rate decrease (1,610) (939) 26
Maturity profile of defined benefit oblig
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 1" 6 7
Projected benefit obligation 6,75,957 20,03,908 19,01,867
Accumulated benefit obligation 6,75.957 20,03,808 19,01,867
Pay-out analysis
Particulars As at As at As at
J1st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
1sl year 2,869,250 572472 593,428
2nd year 27,226 89,695 98,786
3rd year 30,033 296,711 1,03,842
4th year 32435 78,219 2,80,209
Sth year 34836 6,74,202 86,362
Next § year pay-out (6-10 year) 2,29,183 2.36,529 4,53,063
Sum of Years 11 and above 6,58,594 10,16,304 12,54 989

Compensated absences (non-funded)

As per the policy of the Company, obligations on account of benefit of accumulated leave of an employee is settled only on termination / retirement of
the employee. Such liability is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation following Project Unit Credit Method,

Note on Cash Flow Statement

The aggregate amount of outflow on account of direct taxes paid is Rs. 45,99,767 (31st March 2021: Rs. 30,22.086, 01st April 2020: Rs. 8,18,997).

Changes in financing liabilities arising from cash and non-cash changes:

Year ended 31st March, 2022

Particulars Opening balance Cash flows Non-cash changes Closing

1st April 2021 2021-2022 31st March 2022
Borrowings (Including Bank Cverdraft) 1,26,65 78,092 (1.25,71,953) - 1,2540,06,133
Interest dues 1,10,95,704 (17.79.41,753) - 5,42,20,731
Total 1,27,76,73,796 (19.05,13.712) - 1,31,82,26,864
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Year ended 31st March, 2021

Particulars Opening balance Cash flows Non-<cash changes |Closing

1st April 2020 2020-2021 31st March 2021
Borrowings (Including Bank Overdraft) 1,26,78,40,996 (12,62,904) = 1,26,65,78,092
Inlerest dues 50,52.061 (17,72,52,439) - 1,10,95,704
Total 1,27,69,33,057 (17.85.15,343) - 1,27.76.73.796 |
COoViD-19

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe, including India. There has been severe disruption to regular operations
ay have an short-term impact of revenues of the Company. The management has used

due to lock-downs and other emergency measures which m

the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates

recover the carrying amount of inventories, trade receivables and other assets. Having regard to the above and
is no material uncertainty in meeting it's kabilit
may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial stat

Trade Receivable & advances include certain overdue and unconfirmed balances. However in

in the fo

and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the management expects to fully

ble future. However,

in the ordinary course of business, realize the value staled in the accounts,

Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 - Operating Segments

There are no reportable segments under Ind AS-108 'Operati
viz., development of real estate in india. Therefore, disclos

10% or more of the Company's total revenue during the period/ year ended 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021,

Financial Ratios
Financial ratios Methodology As at As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April 2020
(a) Current ratio Current Assels divided by 142 236 1.78
Current Liabilities
|(b) Debt Equity Ratio Debt over total shareholders' 10.53 10.62 10.69
equity
(c) Debt Service coverage  |EBIT over current debt 0.68 0.34 0.46
ratio
{d) Return on Equity (%) PAT over total average equity (0.00) 0.01 0.02
(e}inventory Tumover Ratio |Cost of materials consumed 0.1 0.20 0.06
divided by average inventory
{f) Trade receivable Revenue from operations over 264 5.01 2.56
Tumaver ratio average trade receivables
(@) Trade payable Tummover |Adjusted expenses over 3.92 7.39 2.05
ralio average trade payables
(h) Net capital tumover ratio |Revenue from operations cver 0.38 067 021
average working capital
{i) Net profit (%) Net profit over revenue (0.00) 0.00 0.01
EBITDA EBITDA over revenue 0.80 0.26 1.01
(k) Return on capital EBIT over Capital employed 0.17 0.12 0.15
employed
|Financial ratios Methodology % change from 31 |% change from 31
March 2021 to 31 |March 2020 to 31
March 2022 March 2021
(a) Current ratio Current Assets divided by 39.77 -32.89
Current Liabilities
(b) Debt Equity Ratic Debt over total sharehoiders’ 0.89 0.56
equity
(c) Debt Service coverage  |EBIT over current debt -89.25 25.60
ratic
d) Return on Equity (%) PAT over total average equity -103.80 £78.46
(2} Inventory Tumover Ratio |Cosl of materials consumed -0.09 0.08
divided by average inventory
(f) Trade receivable Revenue from operations over 47,30 95.75
Tumover ratio average Irade receivables
(g) Trade payable Turnover |Adjusted expenses over 46.92 -260.74
ratio average trade payables
(h) Net capital turnover ratio |Revenue from operations over -0.28 0.46
average working capital
(i) Net profit (%) Net profit over revenua 0.00 -0.01
|} EBITDA EBITDA over revenue -203.10 73.85)
(k) Return on capital EBIT over Capital employed 296.27 41.80
employed

the Company's liquidity position, there
the eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic
ement owing to the nature and duration of the pandemic

the opinion of management, these current asset would,

ng Segments’ as the Company cperates in a single business and geographical segment
ures of segment wise information is not applicable. Further, no single customer represents



Accord Estates Private Limited
CIN: UTO100MH138TPTC044983

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

(Amount in rupees, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

47

(a)

{0

not more than 25%

% change from 31 |% change from 31
Reason for change more than 25% March 2021 to 31 |March 2020 to 31
March 2022 March 2021
(a) Current ratio - =
(b) Debt Equity Ratio Change inratio is  |Change in ratio is
not more than 25%  [not more than 25%
<) Debt Service coverage ratio - -
d) Return on Equity (%) - -
@) Inventory Turnover Ratio Changainratiois  |Change in ratio is
nol more than 25%  |not more than 25%
(f} Trade receivable Turnover ratio - -
|(9) Trade payable Tumnover ratio = =
(h) Net capital tumover ratio Change in ratio is Change in ratio Is

not more than 25%

(1) Net profit (%) Changeinraticis [Change in ratio is

not more than 25%  [not more than 25%
() EBITDA = =
(k) Return on capital employed - -
Notes -

EBIT - Eamnings before interest and laxes.

EBITDA - Eamings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

PAT - Profit after taxes

Foreign currency exposure and derivative contracts
Foreign currency exposure outstanding as on 31st March 2022 - Nil (315t March 2021

contracts as on 31st March 2022 (31st March 2021 - Nil and 1st April 2020 Nil)

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code') refating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published In the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come in to effect has not
the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code

been notified. The Company will
becomes effective.

First time adoption of Ind AS

The statement of assets and liabilities of the Company as at 31st March 2022 and the state
and the statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2022 and other financi
Standards (Ind AS’) notified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (I
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of th

These ind AS financial statements, for the year ended 31st March 2022, are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For
mpany prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP" or “Previous

years up to and including the year ended 31st March 2021, the Co
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with

GAAP").

Exemptions and Exceptions Availed

The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in pre
101 optional exemptions and mandalory exceptions applied in the

Ind AS optional exemptions

A. Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

paring the Standalone financial information. Set out below are the applicable Ind AS
transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS,

: Nil'and 1st April 2020 Nil). There are no outstanding derivative

ment of profit and loss, the statement to changes in equity
al information has been prepared under Indian Accounting
ndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by
e Act, to the extent applicable.

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in the
financial statement as al the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per previous GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition
after making necessary adjustment for decommissioning kiabilities, Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and
equipment at their previous GAAP carrying value as at transition date 01st April 2020. For the purpose of standalone financial information for the year
ended 31st March 2021, 01st April 2020, the Company has provided the depreciation based on the estimated useful life of respective years.

The Company has elected to measure intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the dale of transition 1o Ind AS.

B. Business Combination
The Company has applied the exemption as provided in Ind AS 101 on non-application of Ind AS 103, "Business Combinations” tu business
combinations consur i prior to the ition Date.

C. Fair value ent of fir ial assets or financial liabilities at initial recognition

Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply the requirements in paragraph B5.1.2A (b) of Ind AS 109 prospectively to transactions entered inta on or after
the date of transition to ind AS. The Company elected to apply the Ind AS 1089 prospectively to financial assets and finaricial iabilities after its transition
date.

Y
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(b)

(c)

(i)

(i)

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

A. Desecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-lime adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the
date of transition to Ind AS. The Company has elacted to apply the de-recognition pravisions of Ind AS 108 prospectively from the date of transition to
Ind AS.

B. Classification and it of financial assets

ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition.
Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortized cost based on facts and crcumstances existing at the date of
transition if retrospective application is impracticable. Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts
and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of financial assets accounted at amortized cost has been done retrospectively
except where the same is impracticable,

C. Estimates

On assessment of the estimates made under the previous GAAP financial statements, the Group has concluded that there is no necessity to revise
the estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates, However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but
not required under previous GAAP are made by the Group for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date. Key estimates
considered in preparation of financial stalements that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL

- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried are amortized cost.

- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model.

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the
reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Reconciliation of total equity between previous GAAP and Ind AS

|Particulars Notes to first time As at As at
adoption of Ind AS | 31st March, 2021 01st April, 2020
Total Equity (shareholders funds) as per previous GAAP 12,25,29,790 12,08,44,325
Adjustments:
(i} Actuarial valuation impact on employee benefits (d)(iy 21,68,821 20,69,261
(if} Provision for expected credit losses (i) 23,01,608 10,89,195
(iii) Prior period tax adjustments (d){iv)(1) = (42,032)
(iv) Tax adjustments (d)(iii) (11,62,311) (8,21,198)
Total impact on adjustments 33,08,117 22,95,225
Total equity (shareholder's fund] as per ind AS 11,92, 21,673 11,85,49,100
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Particulars Notes to first time As at
adoption of ind AS | 31st March, 2021
Profit/(Loss) after tax as per previous GAAP 16,85 464
(i) Actuarial valuation impact on employee benefits (d)i) 99,560
(it) Provision for expected credit losses (di(ii) 12,112,413
{iii} Prior period tax adjustments {d¥iv)(l) 42,032
(v} Tax impact of above adjustments ()i} (3,41,113)
Total impact on adjustments 10,12,892

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 6,72,572
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(i)  Reconciliation of equity as on 1st April 2020 {i.e. date of transition to Ind AS)

Reference IGAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 305,662 - 3,05,662
b) Financial assets
i) Investments 8,49 25200 - 8,49.25 200
ii) Other financial assets 9,96,348 - 9,96,348
c) Deferred tax assets (Net) (d)(in) 2,63,371 8,21,198 10,84 569
(A 8,64,90,581 8,21,198 8,73,11,779
Current assets
a) Inventories 1,38,96.79,953 - 1,38,96.79.953
b) Financial assets
i) Trade receivables (d)in} 12,67,51,320 (10,89,195) 12,56,62,125
if) Cash and cash equivalents 13,78,233 - 13,78,233
iii) Bank balances other than (i) above 1,10,79,294 - 1,10,79,294
Iv) Loans 3,15,000 - 3,15,000
v} Other current financial assets 1,65.000 - 1.65,000
c) Other current assets 35,85.97,022 - 35,85.97.022
(B) 1,88,79 65822 (10,89,195] 1,88,68.76,628
TOTAL (A +B) 1,97,44,56,403 IZIET!SSGl 1,97,41,88,407
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 3,00,00,000 - 3,00,00,000
b} Other equity (e i v ) 9.08.44 325 (22 95 225) 8,8549.100
(A) 12,08.44 325 (22,95,225) 11,85,49.100
Liabilities R
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings (d)(iviIly 79,24,97,906 = 79,24 97 906
ii) Other financial kabilities 14,112,306 = 14,12,306
b) Provisions (i) - 18,93,059 14,08,961 |
(B) 79,39,10,212 18,93,059 79,53,19,173
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i} Short term borrowings 47,53,43,080 . 47.53.43,090
ii) Trade payables
- Amount due to Micro and small enterprises 8,38,960 - 8,328,960
- Amount due 1o other than Micro and small enterprises (d)i) 3,34 23 368 - 3,34, 23 368
i) Other financial kabilities 2,89,30,003 - 2,89,30,003
b) Other current liabilities 52,06 48 106 - 52,06 48 106
c) Provisions {d)i) - 1,76,202 6,60,300
d) Current income tax liabilities (d)iviI) 518,338 142,032) 476,306
(C) 1,05,97,01,866 1,34,170 1,06,03,20,134
TOTAL (A+B+C) 1,97,44,56,403 67,996] 1,97,41,88.407
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(iv) Reconciliation of equity as on 31st March 2021 (i.e. date of transition to Ind AS)

Reference IGAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
|Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 2,51,451 - 251451
b) Financial assets
i} Investments 8.,51,29,950 - 8.51,29,950
ii) Other financial assets 428,284 - 428,284
¢} Deferred tax assets (Net) (d)iii) 2.26.033 11,6231 13,88 344
(A) 8,60,35,718 11,6231 8,71,98,029
Current assets —
a) Inventories 1.21.76.80,108 - 1.21,76.80,108
b) Financial assets
1) Trade receivables (d)ii) 11,89,76,597 (23.01.608) 11,66,74,989
i} Cash and cash equivalents 3,83,58,655 - 3,83,58,655
i) Bank balances other than (i) above 1,17.33.219 - 1.17.33.219
iv) Loans 1,56,500 - 1,56,500
v) Other current financial assets 57.,85,000 - 57,85,000
c) Other current assets 33,33,52,885 - 33,33,52,885
d) Income tax assets (Net) 18,23,780 - 18,23, 780
(B) 1,72,78,66,745 (23,01,608) 1,72,55,65,137
TOTAL (A+B) 1 !81 !39!0 2!452 (11,39,296) 1 !81 !2'!'6 3I166
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 3,00,00,000 - 3,00,00,000
b} Other equity L)) i )iv) 9,25.29,790 (33.08,117) 8,92 21 672
(A) 12,25,29,790 (33,08,117) 11,92,21,672
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 96,02,91,003 - 96,09,91,003
ii) Other financial liabilities 13,04 246 - 13,04 246
b) Provisions (d)i) - 21,198,006 15,680,184
(B) 96,22, 95,249 21,19.006 96,38,75,433
Current liabilities
a) Financial fiabilities
i) Short term borrowings 30,55,87,089 - 30.55,87,089
ii) Trade payables
- Amount due 1o Micro and small enterprises 9,69,459 - 9,69.459
- Amount due to other than Micro and small enterprises 3,64,21.637 - 3,64,21637
iii) Other financial liabilities 17,78,07,618 - 17.78,07.618
b) Other current liabilities 208291621 - 20,82,91,621
¢} Provisions (d)i) - 49,815 5.88.637
d) Current income tax liabilities - - -
(C) 72,90,77.424 49,815 72,96,66,061
TOTAL (A+B+C) 1,81,39,02 462 {11,39,29 1,81,27,63,166
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vy R iliation of St; of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2021

Particulars Reference IGAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Income
Revenue from operations 60,74,08.281 - 60,74,08.281
Other income 21340474 - 21340474
Total income (A) 62,87,48,755 - 62,87.48,755
Expenses
Operating and project expenses 26,47,44,375 - 26,47,44.375
Changes in inventories of construction work in progress 17,19,99,845 - 17,19,99,845
Employee benefit expenses (d){iy 79,08,024 (1,11,107) 77,986,917
Finance cosls 17,98,18,388 - 17,98,18,388
Depreciation and amortisation 48,969 - 48,969
Other expenses (d)iiy 17.45,187 12,12,413 29,57,600
Total expenses (B) 62,62,64,788 11,01,306 62,73,66,094
Profit/{Loss) before exceptional items & tax (A - B) (C) 24,83,967 {11,01,306) 13,82,661
Tax expense:

- Current tax (d){iv){1) 6.79,968 42,032 7.22.000

- Deferred tax - Charge/ (Credit) (d)iii) 1,18,535 (3,41,113) (2.22,578)
Total tax expense (D) 7,98,503 {2,99,081 4,99.422
Profit(loss) after tax (C - D)(E) 16,85,465 (8,02,225) 8,83,240
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
a} (i} kems not to be reclassified subsequently to Statement of
Profit and Loss

- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans - gain/(loss) (d)i) - (2,91,864) (2,91,864)
- Income tax relating to items that will be classified to profit (d)i) - 81,197 81,197

or loss - (Charge )/ Credit
b) (1) tems that will be reclassified subsequently to statement " x -3
of Profit and Loss

(il} Income tax relating to items that will be classified to profit ” = 5
or loss
Other comprehensive incomel (loss) for the year (F) - (2,10,667 (2,10,667)
Total comprehensive |  (loss) for the year (E + F) 16,85,465 (10.12,892) 6,72,572

{vi) Impact of Ind AS adoption on the Summary Statement of Cash Flows
There were no material differences between the summary statement of cash flow and cash flow statement under previous GAAP.

(d) Notes to First Time Adoption:
() Actuarial valuation impact on employee benefits
Uplo the year ended 31st March 2021 the Company did not make provision for gratuity and leave encashment in accordance with the requirement of

applicable accounting standard, Accordingly, provision for gratuity and leave encashment has been by the Company for the year 31st March 2020 and
31st March 2021 in accordance with Ind AS 18,

Under the previous GAAP, the rer nents of the defined benefit plans were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. Under Ind AS, these
remeasurements of the defined benefit plans Le. actuanal gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net
Interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss.

(i) Allowance for expected credit losses

As per ind AS 109 requirement, expected credit loss impact on Trade receivable has been worked out for the purpose of financial statement and
shown as adjustments.

(ili)  Deferred tax assets (net)
Under Previous GAAP, deferred taxes were recognized for the tax effect of timing differences bet 1 & ing profit and taxable profit for the year
using the income statement approach. Under Ind AS, deferred taxes are recognized using the balance sheel for future tax consequences of temporary
difference between the carrying value of assets and liabilties and their respective tax bases. Deferred lax has been computed on adjustments made
as detailed above and has been adjusted in the standalone financial information,
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(a)

(b

(e

51

Financial instruments - Accounting classifications & fair value measurement

Financial asset and liabilities (Non-current and Current)
Sr. Particulars 1st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 01st April, 2020
No. Amortised Cost | Carrying value Amortised Cost Carrying value Amortised Cost Carrying value
A |Financial assets
(i) |Non<urrent investments 25,200 25,200 25,200 25,200 25,200 25,200
(i) |Other non-current financial 4,28,284 4,28 284 428,284 4,28,284 996,348 9,96 348
asset
(iil) |Trade receivables (net) 10,62,00,627 10,62,00,627 11,66,74,980 11,66,74,989 12,56,62,125 12,56.62,125
{iv) |Cash and cash equivalents 5,21,68,606 5,21,68,606 3.,83,58,665 3.83,58,655 13,78,233 13,78,233
(v) |Other bank balances 1,22,54,260 1.22,54 260 1,17,33,219 1,17,33,218 1.10,79.284 1,10,79,294
(vi) |Loans 37,60,000 37,60,000 1,56,500 1,56.500 3,15,000 3,15,000
(vi) |Other current financial asset 55,00,000 55,00,000 57,85,000 57,685,000 1,65,000 1,65,000
Total fi ial t 18,03,36,977 34,61,48.305 44,82,81,328 17,31,61,847 13,96,21,200 13,96,21,200
B |Financial liabilities
(i} |Non-current borrowings 50,85,32,230 50,85,32,230 96,09,91,003 96,09 91,003 79,24,97 906 79,24 .97 906
(i) |Other financial liabilities 15,48,583 15,48 583 13,04,246 13,04,.246 14,12,308 14,12,306
(i} |Current borrowings 74,54, 73,902 74,54,73,902 30,55.87.089 30,55,87,089 47,53,43,090 47,53,43.090
(iv) |Trade payables 3,3643,437 3,36 43437 3,73,91.096 3,73,81,096 34262328 3,42 62328
(v) |Other current financial kabilibes 35.48.41,300 35,49.41,300 17,78.07.618 17,78,07618 2,89,30,003 2,89,30,003
Total financial liabilities 1,64.41,39, 453 1,64,41,39,453 1,48.30,81,052 1,48,30,81,052 1,33,24,45634 1,33,24 45 634
Note:

{i) Since there is no Financial Asset/Financial Liability which is measured at fair value through Profit & Loss or Fair value through other Comprehensive Income, no
separate disclosure has been made for the same in the above table.

(il) Abave disclosure excludes investments (gross) in subsidiaries and associate as these are valued at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 - 'Separate Financial Statement’
(Refer note 5).

Fair valuation techniques

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabiities using the best and most relevant data available. The fair values of the
financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,

The management assessed that fair value of Trade receivables (net), Cash and cash equivalents, Other bank balances, Loans, Other current financial asset, Current
borrowings, Trade payables and Other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Further,
the management has assessed that fair value will be approximate to their carrying amounts as they are priced 1o market interest rates on or near the end of reporting
period.

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial labilties are measured a fair value in the financial statement and are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels
are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilites.
Level 2 - Dther techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effact on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 : Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

Risk management framework

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The board of directors is
responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the
risk faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to imits. Risk management policies and systems are raviewed
regularty to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company’s Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with
the Company'’s risk gement policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation 1o the risks faced by the Company.
The Board of Directors is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit team. Internal audit team undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board of Directors.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
+ Credit risk;

« Liquidity risk;

* Market risk
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Credit risk :

Credit risk arises from the possibility that customers or counterparty to financial instruments may not be able to meet their obligations. To manage this, the Company
penodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing
of accounts receivable. Credit nisks arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, financial institutions and others, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables.

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of institutions, market reputation and service standards to select banks with which balances and deposits are
maintained. the balances and fixed deposils are generally maintained with the banks with whom the Company has regular transactions. Further, the Company does not
malntain significant cash in hand other than those required for its day to day operations. Considering the same, the Company is not exposed to expected credit loss of
cash and cash equivalent and bank balances.

The Company has entered into 1s for the sale of residential units on an instalment basis, The instalments are specified in the contracts. The Company is exposed
to credit risk in respect of instalments due. However, the legal ownership of residential units are transferred to the buyer only after all the instalments are recovered. In
addition, instalment dues are monitored on an ongoing basis with the resull thal the Company'’s exposure to credit risk is not significant. The Company evaluates the
cor n of nsk with respect 1o trade ivables as low, as none of its customers constitutes significant portions of trade receivables as at the year end.

Liquidity risk :

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the cbligations associated with its financial liabilities that are seltled by delivering cash or
anather financial asset. The Company’s approach 10 managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity 1o meet its liabilities when they are
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to Company's reputation.

Management monitars rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis ol expacted cash flows 10 ensure it has sufficient
cash to meat operational needs. Such forecasting takes inlo consideration the Company's debt financing plans, covenant compliance and compliance with internal
statement of financial position ratio targets.

Maturities of financial liabilities:
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial hiabilities at the reporting date:

Particulars Less than 1 year 1105 year Above 5 years Total

As at 31st March 2022

Borrowings 74,54,73,902 50,85,32,230 - 1,2540,06.133
Other financial liabilities 15,448,583 - - 15,48 583
Trade payables 33643437 - - 3,36,43.437
Other current financial liabilities 35,49,41.300 - - 354941300
As at 31st March 2021

Baorrowings 30,55,87,089 96,09,91,003 - 1,26 65.78,092
Cther financial liabilities 13,04,246 - - 13.04.246
Trade payables 3,73,91,096 - . 3.73,91.096
Other current financial liabilties 17,78,07.618 - - 17.78.07 618
As at 1st April 2020

Borrowings 47,53,43,000 79.24,97 906 - 1,26,76,40,996
Other financial liabilities 14,12,306 % x 14,12,306
Trade payables 34262328 - - 34262328
Other current financial liabilities 2,89,30,003 - - 2,89,30.003

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is 1o manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising
the relum. The pre dominant currency of the Company's revenue and operaling cash flows is Indian Rupees (INR). There is no foreign currency risk as there is no
putslanding foreign currency exposure at the year end.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company has taken term loans from bank and financial institutions and issued non-convertible debentures to group entity. With respect to these loans and debentures
aggregating 1o Rs. 1,08,37,15,535 as at 31st March 2022 (as at 31st March 2021 Rs. 1,14 88,89,207, as at 1st April 2020 Rs. 80,15,89,967), interest is payable at fixed
rate. Therefore, there are no interest rate risks, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in markel interest rates.

With respect to short term borrowings from bank, interest is payable at fixed rate. Short term borrowings from related parties and others are interest free and demand
loans. Therefore, there are no interest rate risks, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash fiows will fluctuate because of change in markel interest rates.




Accord Estates Private Limited

CIN: UT0100MH198TPTC044983

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

(Amount in rupees, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

52 Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern so, that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital. The Company manages its capital structure and make adjustments to, in light of
changes in economic conditions, and the risk characteristics of underlying assets. In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst
other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the borrowings that define the capital structure requirements.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowing (including current and non-current terms loans as shown in the balance sheet).

The Company monitors capital using "Total Debt' to 'Equity’. The Company’s Total Debt to Equity are as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2022 | 31st March, 2021 01st April, 2020

Total debt* 1,25,40,06,133 1,26,65,78,002 1,26,78,40,996
Total capital (total equity shareholder’s fund) 11,91,00,016 11,92,21672 11,8549,100
Nel debt lo equity ratio 1053 10.62 10.69 /

* Total debt = Non-current bormowings + current borrowings + current maturities of non-current bormowings.

As per our audit report of even date
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